

attorney general, acting in the name of the state, may seek recovery of such penalties in a civil action.

Passed the Senate February 5, 1970
 Passed the House February 3, 1970
 Approved by the Governor February 20, 1970
 Filed in Office of Secretary of State February 24, 1970

CHAPTER 27
 [Engrossed Senate Bill No. 277]
 MOBILE HOMES, COMMERCIAL COACHES
 AND/OR
 RECREATIONAL VEHICLES

AN ACT Relating to mobile homes, commercial coaches and/or recreational vehicles; amending section 1, chapter 157, Laws of 1967 as amended by section 1, chapter 229, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 43.22.340; amending section 2, chapter 157, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.22.350; amending section 3, chapter 157, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.22.360; amending section 4, chapter 157, Laws of 1967 as amended by section 2, chapter 229, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 43.22.370; amending section 5, chapter 157, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.22.380; amending section 6, chapter 157, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.22.390; amending section 7, chapter 157, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.22.400; amending section 8, chapter 157, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.22.410; and amending section 3, chapter 229, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 43.22-.420.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON:

Section 1. Section 1, chapter 157, Laws of 1967 as amended by section 1, chapter 229, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 43.22.340 are each amended to read as follows:

The director of labor and industries shall prescribe and enforce rules and regulations governing safety of body and frame design, and the installation of plumbing, heating, and electrical equipment in mobile homes, commercial coaches and/or ((travel-trailers)) recreational vehicles: PROVIDED, That the director shall not prescribe or enforce rules and regulations governing the body and frame design of

recreational vehicles until after the American National Standards Institute shall have published standards and specifications upon this subject. Such rules and regulations shall be reasonably consistent with recognized and accepted principles of safety for body and frame design and ~~((for))~~ plumbing, heating, and electrical installations, in order to protect the health and safety of the people of this state from dangers inherent in the use of substandard and unsafe body and frame design, construction, plumbing, heating, electrical, and other equipment and shall correlate with and, so far as practicable, conform to the then current standards and specifications of the American ~~((Standards-Association))~~ National Standards Institute standards A119.1 for mobile homes and commercial coaches and A119.2 for ~~((travel-trailers))~~ recreational vehicles. It shall be unlawful for any person to lease, sell or offer for sale, within this state, any mobile homes, commercial coaches and/or ~~((travel-trailers))~~ recreational vehicles manufactured after January 1, 1968, containing plumbing, heating, electrical, or other equipment, and after July 1, 1970 body and frame design or construction unless such equipment meets the requirements of the rules and regulations provided for herein.

Sec. 2. Section 2, chapter 157, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.22-.350 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) In compliance with any applicable provisions of this chapter, the director of the department of labor and industries shall establish a schedule of fees, whether on the basis of plan approval or inspection, for the issuance of an insignie which indicates that the mobile home, commercial coach and/or ~~((travel-trailer))~~ recreational vehicle complies with the provisions of RCW 43.22.340 through 43.22.410.

(2) Insignia are not required on mobile homes, commercial coaches and/or ~~((travel-trailers))~~ recreational vehicles manufactured within this state for sale outside this state which are sold to persons outside this state.

Sec. 3. Section 3, chapter 157, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.22-.360 are each amended to read as follows:

Plans and specifications of each model or production prototype of a mobile home, commercial coach and/or (~~(travel-trailer)~~) recreational vehicle showing body and frame design, construction, plumbing, heating and electrical specifications and data shall be submitted to the department of labor and industries for approval and recommendations with respect to compliance with the regulations and standards of each of such agencies. When plans have been submitted and approved as aforesaid, no changes or alterations shall be made to body and frame design, construction, plumbing, heating or electrical installations or specifications shown thereon in any (~~(trailer)~~) mobile home, commercial coach or (~~(camping)~~) recreational vehicle without prior written approval of the department of labor and industries.

Sec. 4. Section 4, chapter 157, Laws of 1967 as amended by section 2, chapter 229, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 43.22.370 are each amended to read as follows:

Any mobile home, commercial coach and/or (~~(travel-trailer)~~) recreational vehicle leased or sold in Washington and manufactured prior to July 1, 1968, which has not been inspected prior to its sale and which does not meet the requirements prescribed will not be required to comply with said requirements except for alterations or installations referred to in RCW 43.22.360.

Sec. 5. Section 5, chapter 157, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.22-.380 are each amended to read as follows:

Used mobile homes, commercial coaches and/or (~~(travel-trailers)~~) recreational vehicles manufactured for use outside this state which do not meet the requirements prescribed and have been used for six months or more will not be required to comply with said requirements except for alterations or installations referred to in RCW 43-.22.360.

Sec. 6. Section 6, chapter 157, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.22-.390 are each amended to read as follows:

Mobile homes, commercial coaches and/or (~~travel-trailers~~) recreational vehicles subject to the provisions of RCW 43.22.340 through 43.22.410, and mobile homes, commercial coaches and/or (~~travel-trailers~~) recreational vehicles upon which alterations of body and frame design, construction or installations of plumbing, heating or electrical equipment referred to in RCW 43.22.360 are made after July 1, 1968, shall have affixed thereto such insigne of approval.

Sec. 7. Section 7, chapter 157, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.22-.400 are each amended to read as follows:

If the director of the department of labor and industries determines that the standards for body and frame design, construction and the plumbing, heating and electrical equipment installed in mobile homes, commercial coaches and/or recreational vehicles by the statutes or rules and regulations of other states are at least equal to the standards prescribed by this state, he may so provide by regulation. Any mobile home, commercial coach and/or recreational vehicle which a state listed in such regulations has approved as meeting its standards for body and frame design, construction and plumbing, heating and electrical equipment shall be deemed to meet the standards of the director of the department of labor and industries, if he determines that the standards of such state are actually being enforced.

Sec. 8. Section 8, chapter 157, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.22-.410 are each amended to read as follows:

Any mobile home, commercial coach and/or (~~travel trailer~~) recreational vehicle that meets the requirements prescribed under RCW 43.22.340 shall not be required to comply with any ordinances of a city or county prescribing requirements for body and frame design, construction or plumbing, heating and electrical equipment installed in mobile homes, commercial coaches and/or recreational vehicles.

Sec. 9. Section 3, chapter 229, Laws of 1969 ex. sess., and RCW 43.22.420 are each amended to read as follows:

There is hereby created a mobile home and (~~travel-trailer~~)

recreational vehicle advisory board consisting of seven members to be appointed by the governor with the advice of the director of labor and industries as herein provided. It shall be the purpose and function of the board to advise the director on all matters pertaining to the enforcement of this chapter including but not limited to standards of body and frame design, construction and plumbing, heating and electrical installations, minimum inspection procedures, the adoption of rules and regulations pertaining to the manufacture of mobile homes, commercial coaches and ((travel-trailers)) recreational vehicles. The members of the mobile home and ((travel-trailer)) recreational vehicle advisory board shall be selected and appointed as follows: One member shall be an employee or officer of a mobile home manufacturing company; one member shall be an employee or officer of a travel trailer manufacturing company; one member shall be an employee, officer or distributor of a company engaged in the manufacture of component parts affecting the plumbing apparatus and equipment; one member shall be an employee, officer or distributor of a company engaged in the manufacture of electrical material, equipment or appliances; one member shall be a distributor or manufacturer of heating equipment, material or devices; and one member shall represent that segment of the general public owning or leasing mobile homes, commercial coaches and/or ((travel-trailers)) recreational vehicles. The chief supervisor for the mobile home, commercial coach and ((travel-trailer)) recreational vehicle section within the department of labor and industries shall be a member of the advisory board and shall act as secretary. The regular term of each member shall be four years: PROVIDED, HOWEVER, The original board shall be appointed for the following terms: The first term of the member representing a manufacturer of mobile homes and of the member representing the general public shall be four years; the member representing the manufacturer of travel trailers shall serve three years; the member representing the manufacturer or distributor of plumbing

component parts shall serve three years; the member representing the manufacturer or distributor of electrical apparatus and equipment shall serve two years; the manufacturer or distributor of heating equipment and appliances shall serve one year. The governor shall fill vacancies caused by death, resignation, or otherwise for the unexpired term of such members by appointing their successors from the same business classification. The same procedure shall be followed in making such subsequent appointments as is provided for the original appointments. The board, at this first meeting shall elect one of its members to serve as chairman. The chief supervisor or any person acting as chief supervisor for the mobile home, commercial coach and (~~travel-trailer~~) recreational vehicle section shall serve as secretary of the board during his tenure as chief. Meetings of the board shall be called at the discretion of the director of labor and industries. Each member of the board shall be paid per diem of twenty-five dollars for each day or portion thereof that the board is in session and each member shall receive in addition thereto his necessary and reasonable transportation and other expenses recognized by the state of Washington which shall be paid out of the appropriation to the department of labor and industries, upon vouchers approved by the director of labor and industries.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 10. This act shall not apply to common carrier equipment.

Passed the Senate January 31, 1970
Passed the House February 5, 1970
Approved by the Governor February 20, 1970
Filed in Office of Secretary of State February 24, 1970

CHAPTER 28
[Senate Bill No. 15]
DIVORCE

AN ACT Relating to divorce; and amending section 3, chapter 215, Laws of 1949 and RCW 26.08.030.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON:

Section 1. Section 3, chapter 215, Laws of 1949 and RCW 26-.08.030 are each amended to read as follows: